# **Special Provisions**

# **Table of Contents**

	Article	Description	Page #
1.	General		2
2.	Scope of Work		2
3.	Prosecution and Progress		2
4.	Traffic		4
5.	Holiday Work Restrictions		4
6.	Utilities		5
7.	Contractor Notification		5
8.	Lane Rental Fee Assessment		6
9.	Material Stockpile and Equipment Storage.		6
10.	Information to Bidders, Use of Recovered M	Material	7
11.	Erosion Control.		7
12.	Polymer Overlay, Item 509.5100.S		9
13.	Nighttime Work Lighting-Stationary		13
14.	Traffic Control Interim Lane Closure, Item 6	343.4100.S	15
15.	Traffic Control		15
16.	Traffic Control Close-Open Freeway Entran	nce Ramp, Item SPV. 0060.0002	16
17.	Pavement Cleanup Project 1100-17-74, Ite	em SPV.0075.0001	16
18.	Marking Contrast Epoxy 4-inch, Item SPV 0	0090.0001	17

# STSP'S Revised June 18, 2019 SPECIAL PROVISIONS

#### 1. General.

Perform the work under this construction contract for Project 1100-17-74, MILWAUKEE - FOND DU LAC, STH 100 TO MENOMONEE RIVER, Wisconsin as the plans show and execute the work as specified in the State of Wisconsin, Department of Transportation, Standard Specifications for Highway and Structure Construction, 2020 Edition, as published by the department, and these special provisions.

If all or a portion of the plans and special provisions are developed in the SI metric system and the schedule of prices is developed in the US standard measure system, the department will pay for the work as bid in the US standard system.

100-005 (20190618)

# 2. Scope of Work.

The work under this contract shall consist of polymer overlays over the bridges of the project area and all incidental items necessary to complete the work as shown on the plans and included in the proposal and contract.

104-005 (20090901)

# 3. Prosecution and Progress.

Begin work within ten calendar days after the engineer issues a written notice to do so.

Provide the start date to the engineer in writing within a month after executing the contract but at least 14 calendar days before the preconstruction conference. Upon approval, the engineer will issue the notice to proceed within ten calendar days before the approved start date.

To revise the start date, submit a written request to the engineer at least two weeks before the intended start date. The engineer will approve or deny that request based on the conditions cited in the request and its effect on the department's scheduled resources.

Provide an individual to serve as the contractor's sole point of contact for field utility coordination and communication for the duration of the project.

Be advised that there may be multiple mobilizations and/or remobilizations to complete construction operations, for example such items as: traffic control, base patching, milling and resurfacing, pavement marking and other incidental items related to staging. No additional payment will be made, by the department, for additional mobilizations.

### **Schedule of Operations**

The department anticipates that the schedule for each stage shall be as follows:

- (i) All work will be completed during nighttime hours and will be limited to a maximum of 3 nights for each stage and there will be two stages for each bridge. Traffic will be staged keeping a minimum of one lane open in each direction for Pilgrim Rd and I- 41 main line structures.
- (ii) IH 41/USH 45 SB On Ramp from Lannon Rd (STH 167) will be closed at night for work performed on B-66-190.
- (iii) STH 100 On Ramp to IH 41/USH 45 SB (B-67-56) thin polymer overlay work will be performed at night limited to a maximum of 3 nights.

#### **Wisconsin Lane Closure System Advance Notification**

Provide the following advance notification to the engineer for incorporation into the Wisconsin Lane Closure System (LCS).

TABLE 108-1 CLOSURE TYPE AND REQUIRED MINIMUM ADVANCE NOTIFICATION

Closure type with height, weight, or width restrictions (available width, all lanes in one direction ≤16')	MINIMUM NOTIFICATION		
Lane and shoulder closures	14 calendar days		
Full roadway closures	14 calendar days		
System and service ramp closures	14 calendar days		
Full system and service ramp closures	14 calendar days		
Detours	14 calendar days		
Closure type without height, weight, or width restrictions (available width, all lanes in one direction >16')	MINIMUM NOTIFICATION		
Lane and shoulder closures	3 business days		
System and service ramp closures	3 business days		
Modifying all closure types	3 business days		

Discuss LCS completion dates and provide changes in the schedule to the engineer at weekly project meetings in order to manage closures nearing their completion date.

108-057 (20150630)

# IH 41/USH 45 and Pilgrim Rd Work Restrictions

#### **Definitions**

The following definitions apply to this contract:

Night Time Hours:

IH 41/USH 45 and Ramps

9:30 PM - 5:30 AM Sunday through Thursday Nights

11:00 PM - 8:00 AM Friday and Saturday Nights

Local Street (Pilgrim Rd) Night-Time Hours

7:00 PM - 6:00 AM Sunday through Thursday nights

7:00 PM - 8:00 AM Friday and Saturday nights

All construction work shall be performed during night time hours as defined above.

Follow plan details for closures. If plan details are not provided in the traffic control plan or within any traffic control change requests, then furnish plans for review to the engineer and Rebecca Klein, Regional Workzone Operations Engineer, (262) 548-8728 a minimum of one week prior to their implementation so that approval, or disapproval, is obtained at least three days prior to roadway, lane, or ramp closures.

No full freeway closures or mainline lane closures on IH 43 are allowed at any time during this project. Restrict work on freeway to working in closed shoulders as allowed by the engineer. Access into the work zones from the freeway roads will be allowed during nighttime hours, subject to approval by the engineer, if operations can be safely accomplished and do not result in non-construction traffic entering

the work zones. Exiting the work zones directly onto freeway roads will be allowed only when operations do not obstruct or slow traffic on the freeway.

Stage changes are allowed only during nighttime hours.

Where lane closure(s) are permitted by the engineer in conjunction with the contractor's work schedule, make a continuous effort to complete the work within said lane closure(s) in a timely manner.

Times outside ramp closure restrictions include setup and breakdown of any equipment and traffic control devices. Notify all local emergency services at least 48 hours prior to closing and re-opening lanes or ramps on IH 41/USH 45.

The length of lane closure will be limited to the work to be done during that allowable lane closure timeframe, not to exceed two miles.

Do not begin or continue any work that closes traffic lanes or ramps outside the allowed time periods specified in this contract.

#### 4. Traffic

All work will be completed during nighttime hours and will be limited to a maximum of 3 nights for each stage and there will be two stages for each bridge.

- (i) Traffic will be staged keeping a minimum of one lane open in each direction for Pilgrim Rd and I-41 main line structures.
- (ii) IH 41/USH 45 SB On Ramp from Lannon Rd (STH 167) will be closed at night for work performed on B-66-190.
- (iii) STH 100 On Ramp to IH 41/USH 45 SB (B-67-56) thin polymer overlay work will be performed at night limited to a maximum of 3 nights.

The allowable closure times will be as follows:

IH 41/USH 45 and Ramps

9:30 PM - 5:30 AM Sunday through Thursday Nights

11:00 PM - 8:00 AM Friday and Saturday Nights

Local Street (Pilgrim Rd) Night-Time Hours

7:00 PM - 6:00 AM Sunday through Thursday nights

7:00 PM - 8:00 AM Friday and Saturday nights

# 5. Holiday Work Restrictions.

Work will also be suspended the last week of June and first week of July to accommodate Summerfest and the 4th of July fireworks. No closures will be allowed during this time.

The following definitions shall apply for this project:

Holiday Work Restrictions

Do not perform work on, nor haul materials of any kind along or across any portion of the highway carrying IH 41/USH 45 traffic, and entirely clear the traveled way and shoulders of such portions of the

highway of equipment, barricades, signs, lights, and any other material that might impede the free flow of traffic during the following holiday periods:

- (i) From noon Thursday, May 21, 2020 to 5:30 AM Wednesday, May 27, 2020 (Memorial Day Weekend)
- (ii) From noon Thursday, July 2, 2020 to 5:30 AM Monday, July 6, 2020 (Independence Day weekend)
- (iii) From noon Thursday, September 3, 2020 to 5:30 AM Wednesday, September 9, 2020 (Labor Day weekend)
- (iv) From noon, Friday, July 10, 2020 to 6:00 AM Monday, July 20, 2020 (Democratic National Convention)

For the following sporting events, no additional lane closures will be allowed from that shown in the plans, 3 hours prior to 2 hours after the game...

-EAA

For the following sporting events, no additional lane closures will be allowed from that shown in the plans, 4 hours prior to 4 hours after the game...

- Green Bay Packers "Gold Package" games
- Ryder Cup Matches

### 6. Utilities.

This is not a Trans 220 project.

No known utility/s within the improvement project limits.

stp-107-065 (20080501)

### 7. Contractor Notification.

Replace standard spec 104.2.2.2(2) with the following:

(2) If the contractor discovers the differing condition, provide a written notice, as specified in 104.3.3, of the specific differing condition before further disturbing the site and before further performing the affected work.

Replace standard specs 104.3.2 and 104.3.3 with the following:

#### 104.3.2 (Vacant)

### 104.3.3 Contractor Initial Written Notice

- (1) If required by 104.2, or if the contractor believes that the department's action, the department's lack of action, or some other situation results in or necessitates a contract revision, promptly provide a written notice to the engineer. At a minimum, provide the following:
  - 1. A written description of the nature of the issue.
  - 2. The time and date of discovering the problem or issue.
  - 3. If appropriate, the location of the issue.
- (2) Provide the additional information specified in 104.3.5 as early as possible to assist the engineer in the timely resolution of an identified issue. The engineer will not require, in subsequent submissions, duplication of information already provided.

sef-104-005 (20141211)

Lane Rental article example for multiple closure situations. See FDM 19-15-2 for guidance.

#### 8. Lane Rental Fee Assessment.

#### A General

The contract designates some lane closures to perform the work. The contractor will not incur a Lane Rental Fee Assessment for closing lanes during the allowable lane closure times. The contractor will incur a Lane Rental Fee Assessment for each lane closure outside of the allowable lane closure times. If a lane is obstructed at any time due to contractor operations, it is considered a closure. The purpose of lane rental is to enforce compliance of lane restrictions and discourage unnecessary closures.

The allowable lane closure times are shown in the Traffic article.

Submit the dates of the proposed lane, ramp, and roadway restrictions to the engineer as part of the progress schedule.

### If you don't have another project in the vicinity of this project, the following paragraph may be deleted:

Coordinate lane, ramp, and roadway closures with any concurrent operations on adjacent roadways within 3 miles of the project. If other projects are in the vicinity of this project, coordinate lane closures to run concurrent with lane closures on adjacent projects when possible. When lane closures on adjacent projects extend into the limits of this project, Lane Rental Fee Assessments will only occur if the closure facilitates work under this contract.

#### **B** Lane Rental Fee Assessment

The Lane Rental Fee Assessment incurred for each lane closure, each ramp closure, and each full closure of a roadway, per direction of travel, is as follows:

IH 41/USH 45 Northbound

- Night time- \$2,500 per lane, per direction of travel, per hour broken into 15 minute increments
- Off-Peak (Weekend)- \$1,000 per lane, per direction of travel, per hour broken into 15 minute increments
- Service Ramp \$2,000 per ramp, per hour broken into 15 minute increments

IH 41/USH 45 Southbound

- Nighttime- \$6,000 per lane, per direction of travel, per hour broken into 15 minute increments
- Off Peak (Weekend)- \$1,000 per lane, per direction of travel, per hour broken into 15 minute increments
- Service Ramp \$2,000 per ramp, per hour broken into 15 minute increments

Local Road (Pilgrim Rd)

- Nighttime- \$2,000 per lane, per direction of travel, per hour broken into 15 minute increments

The Lane Rental Fee Assessment represents a portion of the cost of the interference and inconvenience to the road users for each closure. All lane, roadway, or ramp closure event increments 15 minutes and less will be assessed as a 15-minute increment.

The engineer, or designated representative, will be the sole authority in determining time period length for the Lane Rental Fee Assessment.

Lane Rental Fee Assessments will not be assessed for closures due to crashes, accidents or emergencies not initiated by the contractor.

The department will assess Lane Rental Fee Assessment by the dollar under the administrative item Failing to Open Road to Traffic. The total dollar amount of Lane Rental Fee Assessment will be computed by multiplying the Lane Rental Assessment Rate by the number of 15-minute increments of each lane closure event as described above.

Lane Rental Fee Assessment will be in effect from the time of the Notice to Proceed until the department issues final acceptance. If interim completion time or contract time expires before the completion of specified work in the contract, additional liquidated damages will be assessed as specified in standard spec 108.11 or as specified within this contract.

stp-108-070 (20161130)

### 9. Material Stockpile and Equipment Storage

Submit a map showing all proposed material stockpile and equipment storage locations to the engineer 14 calendar days before either the preconstruction conference or proposed use, whichever comes first. Identify the purpose; length, width & height; and duration of material stockpile or equipment storage at each location. Obtain written permission and necessary permits from the property owner and local governments/agencies and submit two copies to the engineer. Do not stockpile material or store equipment until the engineer approves.

Optional: (Addition of restrictions, revise to fit project, remove if not used)

Material stockpiles and equipment storage on CLICK and insert location(s) is limited to a height of five feet and 14 calendar days unless the engineer approves otherwise in writing.

Material stockpiles and equipment storage on CLICK and insert location(s) is not allowed unless the engineer approves otherwise in writing.

Do not park or store equipment, vehicles, or construction materials within  $\underline{XX}$  feet of the edge of the STH  $\underline{XX}$  traffic lanes during non-working hours.

SER-107-011 (20181019)

# 10. Information to Bidders, Use of Recovered Material

The department encourages the use of waste materials and recovered industrial byproducts as material substitutions (106.2.1), provided they meet standard specification gradation requirements, conform to NR 538 requirements, and follow standard engineering practice for their intended use.

sef-106-005 (20141211)

### 11. Erosion Control.

Supplement standard spec 107.20 with the following:

Erosion control best management practices (BMP's) shown on the plans are at suggested locations. The actual locations will be determined by the contractor's ECIP and by the engineer. Include dust control and each dewatering or by-pass (mechanical pumping) operation in the ECIP submittal. The ECIP will supplement information shown on the plans and not reproduce it. The ECIP will identify how to implement the project's erosion control plan. ECIP will demonstrate timely and diligently staged operations, continuing all construction operations methodically from the initial removals and topsoil stripping operations through the subsequent grading, paving, re-application of top soil, and restoration of permanent vegetation to minimize the period of exposure to possible erosion.

Provide the ECIP 14 days prior to the pre-construction meeting. Provide 1 copy of the ECIP to the department and 1 copy of the ECIP to the WDNR Liaison {Click and Choose a DNR Liaison from the Drop Down Box}. Do not implement the ECIP without department approval and perform all work conforming to the approved ECIP.

Maintain Erosion Control BMP's until permanent vegetation is established or until the engineer determines that the BMP is no longer required.

Stockpile excess materials or spoils on upland areas away from wetlands, floodplains, and waterways. Immediately install perimeter silt fence protection around stockpiles. If stockpiled materials will be left for more than 14 days, install temporary seed or other temporary erosion control measures the engineer orders.

Re-apply topsoil on graded areas, as the engineer directs, immediately after the grading is completed within those areas. Seed, fertilize, and mulch/erosion mat top-soiled areas, as the engineer directs, within 5 days after placement of topsoil. If graded areas are left not completed and exposed for more than 14 days, seed those areas with temporary seed and mulch.

Dewatering (Mechanical Pumping) for Bypass Water (sediment-free) Operations

If dewatering bypass operations are required from one pipe structure to another downstream pipe structure or from the upstream to downstream end of a culvert and the bypass flow is not transporting sediments (sand, silt, and clay particles) from a tributary work site area, bypass pumping operations will be allowed provided that the department has been made aware of and approves operation. When pumping bypass flows, the discharge location will need to be stable and not produce any erosion from the discharge velocity that would cause release of sediment downstream. Dewatering is considered incidental to the contract.

### Dewatering (Mechanical Pumping) for Treatment Water (sediment-laden) Operations

If dewatering operations require pumping of water containing sediments (sand, silt, and clay particles), the discharge will not be allowed to leave the work site or discharge to a storm water conveyance system without sediment removal treatment. Do not allow any excavation for; structures, utilities, grading, maintaining drainage that requires dewatering (mechanical pumping) of water containing sediments (sand, silt, and clay particles) to leave the work site or discharge to a storm water conveyance system without sediment removal treatment.

Prior to each dewatering operation, submit to the department a separate ECIP amendment for sediment removal. Guidance on dewatering can be found on the Wisconsin DNR website located in the Storm Water Construction Technical Standards, Dewatering Code #1061,

#### http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/stormwater/standards/const\_standards.html.

Include reasoning, location, and schedule duration proposed for each operation. Per Code 1061, include all selection criteria: site assessment, dewatering practice selection, calculations, plans, specifications, operations, maintenance, and location of proposed treated water discharge. Provide a stabilized discharge area. If directing discharge towards or into an inlet structure, provide additional inlet protection for back-up protection. Dewatering is considered incidental to the contract.

### **Maintaining Drainage**

Maintain drainage at and through worksite during construction conforming to standard spec 107.20, 204.3.2.1(3), 205.3.3 and 520.3.1(2). Use existing storm sewers, existing culvert pipes, existing drainage channels, temporary culvert pipes, or temporary drainage channels to maintain existing surface and pipe drainage. Pumps may be required to drain the surface, pipe, and structure discharges during construction. Costs for furnishing, operating, and maintaining the pumps is considered incidental to the contract.

SER-107-003 (20161220)

Add the following to standard spec 107.20 as paragraphs nine through fifteen:

(9) Erosion control best management practices (BMP's) the plans show are at suggested locations. The actual locations shall be determined by the contractor's ECIP and by the engineer. Include each dewatering (mechanical pumping) operation in the ECIP submittal. The ECIP shall supplement information the plans show and not reproduce it. The ECIP shall identify how to implement the project's erosion control plan. ECIP shall demonstrate timely and diligently staged operations, continuing all construction operations methodically from the initial removals and topsoil stripping operations through the subsequent grading, paving, and re-application of top soil to minimize the exposure to possible erosion.

### Enter the name, phone, and email for DNR liaison from http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Sectors/documents/Liaisons.pdf

- (10) Provide the ECIP 14 days before the pre-construction conference. Provide 1 copy of the ECIP to the department and 1 copy of the ECIP to the WDNR Liaison name, phone, and email. Do not implement the ECIP until department approval, and perform all work conforming to the approved ECIP.
- (11) Maintain Erosion Control BMP's until permanent vegetation is established or until the engineer determines that the BMP is no longer required.
- (12) Stockpile excess materials or spoils on upland areas away from wetlands, floodplains, and waterways. Install perimeter silt fence protection around stockpiles within a timeframe acceptable to the engineer. If stockpiled materials will be left for more than 14 days, install temporary seed and mulch or other temporary erosion control measures the engineer orders.
- (13) Re-apply topsoil on graded areas, as designated by the engineer, within a timeframe acceptable to the engineer after grading is completed within those areas. Seed, fertilize, and mulch/erosion mat top-soiled areas, as designated by the engineer, within 5 days after placement of topsoil. If graded areas are left not completed and exposed for more than 14 days, seed those areas with temporary seed and mulch.

(14) Do not allow excavation for; structures, utilities, grading, maintaining drainage that requires dewatering(mechanical pumping) of water containing sediments (sand, silt, and clay particles) to leave the work site or discharge to a storm water conveyance system without sediment removal treatment. Before each dewatering operation, submit to the department a separate ECIP amendment describing in words and pictorial format an appropriate BMP for sediment removal, conforming to WisDNR Storm Water Construction Technical Standard, Code 1061, Dewatering. Include reasoning, location, and schedule duration proposed for each operation. Per Code 1061, include all selection criteria: site assessment, dewatering practice selection, calculations, plans, specifications, operations, maintenance, and location of proposed treated water discharge. Provide a stabilized discharge area. If directing discharge towards or into an inlet structure, provide additional inlet protection for back-up protection.

If the Control of Water bid item is included in the contract, select "paid separately" otherwise select "incidental".

(15) Dewatering is <u>Select from drop-down</u>. sef-107-010 (20180104)

# 12. Polymer Overlay, Item 509.5100.S.

### **A Description**

This special provision describes providing two layers of a two-component polymer overlay system to the bridge decks the plans show.

#### **B** Materials

#### **B.1** General

Furnish materials specifically designed for use over concrete bridge decks. Furnish polymer liquid binders from the department's approved product list.

# **B.2 Polymer Resin**

Furnish a polymer resin base and hardener composed of two-component, 100 percent solids, 100 percent reactive, thermosetting compound with the following properties:

Property	Requirements	Test Method
Gel Time <sup>[1]</sup>	15 - 45 minutes @ 73° to 75° F	ASTM C881
Viscosity <sup>[1]</sup>	7 - 70 poises	ASTM D2393, Brookfield RVT, Spindle No. 3, 20 rpm
Shore D Hardness <sup>[2]</sup>	60-75	ASTM D2240
Absorption <sup>[2]</sup>	1% maximum at 24 hr	ASTM D570
Tensile Elongation <sup>[2]</sup>	30% - 70% @ 7 days	ASTM D638
Tensile Strength <sup>[2]</sup>	2000 to 5000 psi @ 7 days	ASTM D638
Chloride Permeability <sup>[2]</sup> <100 coulombs @ 28 days		AASHTO T277

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>[1]</sup> Uncured, mixed polymer binder

Ensure that the polymer resin when mixed with aggregate has the following properties:

<sup>[2]</sup> Cured, mixed polymer binder

Property	Requirement <sup>[1]</sup>	Test Method	
Minimum Compressive Strength	1,000 psi @ 8 hrs 5,000 psi @ 24 hrs	ASTM C579 Method B, Modified <sup>[2]</sup>	
Thermal Compatibility	No Delaminations	ASTM C884	
Minimum Pull-off Strength	250 psi @ 24 hrs	ASTM C1583	

<sup>[1]</sup> Based on samples cured or aged and tested at 75°F

## **B.3 Aggregates**

Furnish natural or synthetic aggregate that is non-polishing; clean; free of surface moisture; fractured or angular in shape; free from silt, clay, asphalt, or other organic materials; and conform to the following:

### **Aggregate Properties**

Property	Requirement	Test Method
Moisture Content <sup>[1]</sup>	1/2 of the measured aggregate absorption, %	ASTM C566
Hardness	≥6.5	Mohs Scale
Fractured Faces	100% with at least 1 fractured face & 80% with at least 2 fractured faces of material retained on No.16	ASTM D5821
Absorption	Absorption ≤1%	

<sup>[1]</sup> Sampled and tested by the department before placement.

#### Gradation

Sieve Size	% Passing by Weight
No. 4	100
No. 8	30 – 75
No. 16	0 – 5
No. 30	0 – 1

### B.4 Approval of Bridge Deck Polymer Overlay System

A minimum of 20 working days before application, submit product data sheets and specifications from the manufacturer, and a certified report of test or analysis from an independent laboratory to the engineer for approval. The department will sample and test the aggregates for gradation and moisture content before placement. If requested, supply the department with samples of the polymer for the purpose of acceptance testing.

### **B.4.1 Product Data Sheets and Specifications**

Product data sheets and specifications from the manufacture consists of literature from the manufacturer showing general instructions, application recommendations/methods, product properties, general instructions, or any other applicable information.

### **B.4.2 Certified Report of Test or Analysis**

Conform to the following:

<u>Polymer Binder:</u> Submit a certified report of test or analysis from an independent laboratory dated less than 3 years before the date of the project letting showing the polymer binder meets the requirements of section B.2. <u>Aggregates:</u> Submit a certified report of test or analysis from an independent laboratory dated less than 6 months before the date of the project letting showing the aggregates meet the requirements of section B.3.

### **C** Construction

Plastic inserts that will provide 2-inch by 2-inch cubes shall be placed in the oversized brass molds.

#### C.1 General

Ensure that the overlay system is 1/4 inch thick or thicker.

Conform to the following:

<u>Field Review:</u> Conduct a field review of the existing deck to identify any possible surface preparation and material compatibility issues.

<u>Pre-Installation Meeting</u>: Conduct a pre-installation meeting with the manufacturer's representative and the engineer before construction. Discuss the field review findings, verification testing of the surface preparation and establish procedures for maintaining optimum working conditions and coordination of work. Furnish the engineer a copy of the recommended procedures and apply the overlay system according to the manufacturer's instructions. Supply for the engineer's use for the duration of the project, a Concrete Surface Profile (CSP) chip set of 10 from the International Concrete Repair Institute (ICRI).

<u>Manufacturer's Representative:</u> An experienced manufacturer's representative familiar with the overlay system installation procedures shall be present at all times during surface preparation and overlay placement to provide quality assurance that the work is being performed properly. This requirement may be reduced at the engineer's discretion.

<u>Material Storage:</u> Store and handle materials according to the manufacturer's recommendations. Store resin materials in their original containers in a dry area. Store all aggregates in a dry environment and protect aggregates from contaminants on the job site.

### **C.2 Deck Preparation**

### C.2.1 Deck Repair

Remove all asphaltic patches and unsound or disintegrated areas of the concrete decks as the plans show, or as the engineer directs. Work performed to repair the concrete deck will be paid for under other items. Ensure that products used for deck patching are compatible with the polymer overlay system.

NOTE: Some polymer systems require concrete patch material to be in place a minimum of 28-days before overlaying - contact polymer manufacturer before completing deck patching/repair.

# **C.2.2 Surface Preparation**

Determine an acceptable shotblasting machine operation (size of shot, flow of shot, forward speed, and/or number of passes) that provides a surface profile meeting CSP 5 (medium-heavy shotblast) according to the ICRI Technical Guideline No. 310.2. If the engineer requires additional verification of the surface preparation, test the tensile bond strength according to ASTM C1593. The surface preparation will be considered acceptable if the tensile bond strength is greater than or equal to 250 psi or the failure area at a depth of 1/4 inches or more is greater than 50 percent of the test area. Continue adjustment of the shotblasting machine and necessary testing until the surface is acceptable to the engineer or a passing test result is obtained.

Prepare the entire deck using the final accepted adjustments to the shotblasting machine as determined above. Thoroughly blast clean with hand-held equipment any areas inaccessible by the shotblasting equipment. Do not perform surface preparation more than 24 hours before the application of the overlay system.

Protect drains, expansion joints, access hatches, or other appurtenances on the deck from damage by the shot and sand blasting operations and from materials adhering and entering. Tape or form all construction joints to provide a clean straight edge.

Before shot blasting, remove pavement markings within the treatment area using an approved mechanical or blasting method.

Prepare the vertical concrete surfaces adjacent to the deck a minimum of 2" above the overlay according to SSPC-SP 13 (free of contaminants, dust, and loose concrete) by sand blasting, using wire wheels, or other approved method.

Just before overlay placement, clean all dust, debris, and concrete fines from the prepared surfaces including the vertical surfaces with compressed air. When using compressed air, the air stream must be free of oil. Any grease, oil, or other foreign matter that rests on or has absorbed into the concrete shall be removed completely. If prepared surfaces (including the first layer of the polymer overlay) are exposed to rain or dew, lightly sandblast (brush/breeze blast) the exposed surfaces.

The engineer may consider alternate surface preparation methods per the overlay system manufacture's recommendations. The engineer will approve the final surface profile and deck cleanliness before the contractor placing the polymer overlay.

# C.2.3 Transitional Area

If the plans show, create a transitional area approaching transverse expansion joints and ends of the deck using an approved mechanical or blasting method. Remove 1/4 inch to 5/16 inch of concrete adjacent to the joint or end of deck and taper a distance of 3 feet.

If the plans show, create a transitional area on the approach pavement. Prep and place the first lift 3 feet beyond the end of the deck the same width as the deck. Prep and place the second lift 6 feet beyond the end of the deck the same width as the deck.

### C.3 Overlay Application

Perform the handling and mixing of the polymer resin and hardening agent in a safe manner to achieve the desired results according to the manufacturer's instructions. Do not apply the overlay system if any of the following exists:

- 1. Ambient air temperature is below 50 F or above 100 F.
- 2. Deck temperature is below 50 F.
- 3. Moisture content in the deck exceeds 4.5 percent when measured by an electronic moisture meter or shows visible moisture after 2 hours when measured in accordance with ASTM D4263.
- 4. Rain is forecasted during the minimum curing periods listed under C.5.
- 5. Materials component temperatures below 65 F or above 99 F.
- 6. Concrete age is less than 28 days unless approved by the engineer.
- 7. The deck temperature exceeds 100 F.
- 8. If the gel time is 10 minutes or less at the predicted high air temperature for the day.

After the deck has been shotblasted or during the overlay curing period, only necessary surface preparation and overlay application equipment will be allowed on the deck. Provide appropriate protective measures to prevent contamination from equipment allowed on the deck during preparation and application operations. Begin overlay placement as soon as possible after surface preparation operations.

The polymer overlay shall consist of a two-course application of polymer and aggregate. Each of the two courses shall consist of a layer of polymer covered with a layer of aggregate in sufficient quantity to completely cover the polymer. Apply the polymer and aggregate according to the manufacturer's requirements. Apply the overlay using equipment designed for this purpose. The application machine shall feature positive displacement volumetric metering and be capable of storing and mixing the polymer resins at the proper mix ratio. Disperse the aggregate using a method that provides a uniform, consistent coverage of aggregate and minimizes aggregate rolling or bouncing into final position. First course applications that do not receive enough aggregate before the polymer gels shall be removed and replaced. A second course applied with insufficient aggregate may be left in place, but will require additional applications before opening to traffic.

After completion of each course, cure the overlay according to the manufacturer's instructions. Follow the minimum cure times listed under C.5 or as prescribed by the manufacturer. Remove the excess aggregate from the surface treatment by sweeping, blowing, or vacuuming without tearing or damaging the surface; the material may be re-used if approved by the engineer and manufacturer. Apply all courses of the overlay system before opening the area to traffic. Do not allow equipment or traffic on the treated area until directed by the engineer.

After the first layer of coating has cured to the point where the aggregate cannot be pulled out, apply the second layer. Before applying the second layer, broom and blow off the first layer with compressed air to remove all loose excess aggregate.

Before opening to traffic, clean expansion joints and joint seals of all debris and polymer. A minimum of 3 days following opening to traffic, remove loosened aggregates from the deck, expansion joints, and approach pavement.

### **C.4** Application Rates

Apply the polymer overlay in two separate courses in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, but not less than the following rate of application.

Course	Minimum Polymer Rate <sup>[1]</sup> (GAL/100 SF)	Aggregate <sup>[2]</sup> (LBS/SY)
1	2.5	10+
2	5.0	14+

The minimum total applications rate is 7.5 GAL/100 SF.

# **C.5 Minimum Curing Periods**

As a minimum, cure the coating as follows:

	Average temperature of deck, polymer and aggregate components in degrees F				es F			
Course	50-54	55-59	60-64	65-69	70-74	75-79	80-84	85-99
1	6 hrs.	5 hrs.	4 hrs.	3 hrs.	2.5 hrs	2 hrs	1.5 hrs.	1 hr.
2	8 hrs.	6.5 hrs.	6.5 hrs.	5 hrs.	4 hrs.	3 hrs.	3 hrs.	3 hrs.

If faster cure times are desired and achievable, submit to the engineer a certified test report from an independent laboratory showing the material is able to reach a compressive strength of 1000 psi as tested per ASTM C 579 Method B within the temperature ranges and cure times for which the product is proposed to be placed. Establish ambient air, material, and substrate temperatures from the manufacturer for field applications. Field applications will not be allowed below the documented temperatures.

#### C.6 Repair of Polymer Overlay

Repair all areas of unbonded, uncured, or damaged polymer overlay for no additional compensation. Submit repair procedures from the manufacturer to the engineer for approval. Absent a manufacturer's repair procedures and with the approval of the engineer, complete repairs according to the following: Saw cut the limits of the area to the top of the concrete; remove the overlay by scarifying, grinding, or other approved methods; shot blast or sand blast and air blast the concrete before placement of polymer overlay; and place the polymer overlay according to section C.3.

#### **D** Measurement

The department will measure Polymer Overlay by the square yard acceptably completed.

### **E** Payment

The department will pay for measured quantities at the contract unit price under the following bid item:

ITEM NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	UNIT
509.5100.S	Polymer Overlay	SY

Payment is full compensation for preparing the surface; for tensile bond testing; for creating the transitional area; for providing the overlay; for cleanup; and for sweeping/vacuuming and disposing of excess materials.

The department will pay separately for Concrete Deck Repair.

stp-509-030 (20170615)

# 13. Nighttime Work Lighting-Stationary.

#### **A Description**

This special provision describes furnishing portable lighting as necessary to complete nighttime work. Nighttime operations consist of work specifically scheduled to occur after sunset and before sunrise.

### B (Vacant)

### **C** Construction

#### C.1 General

This provision shall apply when providing, maintaining, moving, and removing portable light towers and equipment-mounted lighting fixtures for nighttime stationary work operations, for the duration of nighttime work on the contract.

<sup>[2]</sup> Application of aggregate shall be of sufficient quantity to completely cover the polymer.

At least 14 days before the nighttime work, furnish a lighting plan to the engineer for review and acceptance. Address the following in the plan:

- 1. Layout, including location of portable lighting lateral placement, height, and spacing. Clearly show on the layout the location of all lights necessary for every aspect of work to be done at night.
- 2. Specifications, brochures, and technical data of all lighting equipment to be used.
- 3. The details on how the luminaires will be attached.
- 4. Electrical power source information.
- 5. Details on the louvers, shields, or methods to be employed to reduce glare.
- 6. Lighting calculations. Provide illumination with average to minimum uniformity ratio of 5:1 or less throughout the work area.
- 7. Detail information on any other auxiliary equipment.

# C.2 Portable Lighting

Provide portable lighting that is sturdy and free standing and does not require any guy wires, braces, or any other attachments. Furnish portable lighting capable of being moved as necessary to keep up with the construction project. Position the portable lighting and trailers to minimize the risk of being impacted by traffic on the roadway or by construction traffic or equipment. Provide lighting protection for the portable lighting. Portable lighting shall withstand up to 60 mph wind velocity.

If portable generators are used as a power source, furnish adequate power to operate all required lighting equipment without any interruption during the nighttime work. Provide wiring that is weatherproof and installed according to local, state, federal (NECA and OSHA) requirements. Equip all power sources with a ground-fault circuit interrupter to prevent electrical shock.

### C.3 Light Level and Uniformity

Position (spacing and mounting height) the luminaires to provide illumination with an average to minimum uniformity ratio of 5:1 or less throughout the work area.

Illuminate the area as necessary to incorporate construction vehicles, equipment, and personnel activities.

### **C.4 Glare Control**

Design, install, and operate all lighting supplied under these specifications to minimize or avoid glare that interferes with all traffic on the roadway or that causes annoyance or discomfort for properties adjoining the roadway. Locate, aim, and adjust the luminaires to provide the adequate level of illumination and the specified uniformity in the work area without the creation of objectionable glare.

Provide louvers, shields, or visors, as needed, to reduce any objectionable levels of glare. As a minimum, ensure the following requirements are met to avoid objectionable glare on the roadways open to traffic in either direction or for adjoining properties:

- 1. Aim tower-mounted luminaires, either parallel or perpendicular to the roadway, so as to minimize light aimed toward approaching traffic.
- 2. Aim all luminaires such that the center of beam axis is no greater than 60 degrees above vertical (straight down).

If lighting does not meet above-mentioned criteria, adjust the lighting within 24 hours.

# **C.5 Continuous Operation**

Provide and have available sufficient fuel, spare lamps, generators, and qualified personnel to ensure that the lights will operate continuously during nighttime operation. In the event of any failure of the lighting system, discontinue the operation until the adequate level of illumination is restored. Move and remove lighting as necessary.

### D (Vacant)

# **E** Payment

Costs for furnishing a lighting plan, and for providing, maintaining, moving, and removing portable lighting, tower mounted lighting, and equipment-mounted lighting required under this special provision are incidental to the contract.

stp-643-010 (20100709)

### 14. Traffic Control Interim Lane Closure, Item 643.4100.S

### **A Description**

This special provision describes closing a freeway/expressway traffic lane.

### B (Vacant)

#### **C** Construction

Install and reposition traffic control devices as required to close a traffic lane. Remove and return the devices to their previous configuration when the closure is no longer required.

#### **D** Measurement

The department will measure Traffic Control Interim Lane Closure as each individual reposition/return cycle acceptably completed. The department will not measure additional moves or configuration changes as might be required solely to accommodate the contractor's operations.

The department will measure the closures by traffic lane and roadway. The department will not measure multiple closures in the same traffic lane on a project.

# **E** Payment

The department will pay for measured quantities at the contract unit price under the following bid item:

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT
643.4100.S Traffic Control Interim Lane Closure EACH

Payment is full compensation for closing and re-opening the affected traffic lane.

stp-643-030 (20170615)

### 15. Traffic Control.

Supplement standard spec 643.3.1 with the following:

Provide the Waukesha and Washington County Sheriff's Department, the Wisconsin State Patrol, Department of Motor Vehicle Police Department and the project engineer a current telephone number with which the contractor or his representative can be contacted during non-working hours in the event a safety hazard develops.

Do not park or store equipment, contractor's and personal vehicles or construction materials within the clear zone or on any roadway carrying traffic during working and non-working hours except at locations and periods of time approved by the engineer.

Do not permit construction or personnel equipment or vehicles to directly cross the live traffic lanes of IH 41/USH 45, Ramps and Pilgrim Rd. Yield to all through traffic at all locations. Equip all vehicles or equipment operating in the live traffic lanes with a hazard identification beam (flashing yellow signal light) that is visible from 360 degrees. Operate the flashing yellow beam only when merging or exiting live traffic lanes or when parked or operating on shoulders, except when parked behind barrier wall. Do not park personal vehicles within the access control limits of the freeway. Do not cross live traffic lanes of IH 41/USH 45, Ramps and Pilgrim Rd with equipment or vehicles.

Obtain prior approval from the engineer for the locations of egress or ingress for construction vehicles to prosecute the work.

Do not disturb, remove or obliterate any traffic control signs, advisory signs, sand barrel array, shoulder delineators or beam guard in place along the traveled roadways without the approval of the engineer.

Ensure that Flagging operations conform to standard spec 104.6.1.(4) and chapter 6E of the WMUTCD.

Replace standard spec 643.3.1.(7) with the following:

Provide equipment, forces, and materials to promptly restore any traffic control devices or pavement markings damaged or disturbed within 2 hours of being contacted.

SER-643-001 (20170808)

### 16. Traffic Control Close-Open Freeway Entrance Ramp, Item SPV. 0060.0002.

### **A Description**

This special provision describes closing and re-opening a freeway entrance ramp and associated auxiliary lane.

### B (Vacant)

### **C** Construction

Install or reposition traffic control devices required for closing a freeway entrance ramp and adjacent auxiliary lanes. Remove or return traffic control devices to their previous configuration when the closure is no longer required.

#### **D** Measurement

The department will measure Traffic Control Close-Open Freeway Entrance Ramp by each individual ramp closure acceptably completed.

### **E** Payment

The department will pay for measured quantities at the contract unit price under the following bid item:

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT

SPV. 0060.0002 Traffic Control Close-Open Freeway Entrance Ramp

EACH

Payment is full compensation for daily surveillance; preparing and submitting the daily surveillance report with hourly metered tickets; mobilization; sweeping; and disposing of materials. Traffic Control devices will be paid separately.

sef-643-001 (20180627)

# 17. Pavement Cleanup Project 1100-17-74, Item SPV.0075.0001

## **A Description**

This special provision describes cleanup of dust and debris from pavements within and adjacent to the job site. Pavement Cleanup includes surveillance and reporting of all active haul routes.

### **B** Materials

# **B.1 Pavement Cleanup**

Furnish a vacuum-type street sweeper equipped with a power broom, water spray system, and a vacuum collection system.

Use vacuum equipment with a self-contained particulate collector capable of preventing discharge from the collection bin into the atmosphere.

Use a vacuum-type sweeper as the primary sweeper, except as specified in this special provision or approved by the engineer.

#### **C** Construction

# C.1 Surveillance

Provide daily surveillance of active haul routes to identify if material is being tracked from the jobsite. Document the condition of the roads and all sweeping recommendations in a daily report. Submit reports to the engineer daily, including hourly metered tickets for that day's sweeping activities.

### C.2 Pavement Cleanup

Keep all pavements, sidewalks, driveways, curb lanes and gutters within the project boundaries, free of dust and debris generated from all activity under the contract. Keep all pavements, sidewalks, driveways, curb lanes, and gutters adjacent to the project free of dust and debris that are caused by land disturbing, dust generating activities, as defined in the contractor's Dust Control Implementation Plan (DCIP). Provide routine sweeping of all pavements, sidewalks, driveways, curb lanes and gutters on local-street

active haul routes as defined in the DCIP or as directed by the engineer. Include the following roadways for routine sweeping:

- IH 41/USH 45
- Pilgrim Rd
- STH 100 On Ramp to IH 41/USH 45 SB
- And all other roadways approved by the department

Consider projects needs for cases like work next to hospitals or very sensitive areas such as next to trout streams, lake properties, etc. Evaluate shortening the response period in these cases and similar cases

In addition to routine sweeping, conduct sweepings as the engineer directs or approves, to eliminate dust problems that might arise during off-work hours or emergencies. Provide the engineer with a contact person available at all times to respond to requests for emergency sweeping. Coordinate with engineer to determine deadlines for responding to emergency sweeping requests and cleaning up spillage and material tracked to/from the project.

Skid steers with mechanical power brooms may only be used on sidewalks and driveways whose pavements will not support the weight of a street sweeper, unless otherwise approved by the engineer. Do not dry sweep. Ensure all broomed equipment used for sweeping has a functioning water bar.

#### **D** Measurement

The department will measure Pavement Cleanup (Project 1100-17-74) by the hour acceptably completed.

Tickets shall include:

- Date
- Company
- Operator name
- Equipment make/model
- Routes swept
- Total hours.

Total hours shall be to the nearest 0.25 hour that work under this item was performed.

### **E** Payment

The department will pay for measured quantities at the contract unit price under the following bid item:

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT SPV. 0075.0001 Pavement Cleanup Project 1100-17-74 HR

Payment is full compensation for daily surveillance; preparing and submitting the daily surveillance report with hourly metered tickets; mobilization; sweeping; and disposing of materials.

sef-104-006 (20170323)

# 18. Marking Contrast Epoxy 4-inch, Item SPV 0090.0001.

### **A Description**

This special provision describes applying contrast epoxy marking conforming to standard spec 646, as the plans show, and as follows.

### **B** Materials

Furnish epoxy pavement marking materials conforming of standard spec 646.2.

#### **C** Construction

Apply two 1 ½-inch wide black epoxy lines with a 4-inch separation between the two black lines for the first pass, followed by a 4-inch wide white epoxy line second pass, for a total width of 7 inches. Apply epoxy pavement marking conforming to standard spec 646.3.

### **D** Measurement

The department will measure Marking Contrast Epoxy 4-Inch Special by the linear foot acceptably completed, measured once as the length of the centerline of the completed installation.

### **E** Payment

The department will pay for measured quantities at the contract unit price under the following bid items:

ITEM NUMBER **DESCRIPTION** UNIT LF

SPV.0090.0001 Marking Contrast Epoxy 4-Inch

Payment is full compensation for providing replacement marking.

SER-646-001 (20180214)